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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Annual Report and Financial Statemenls for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

l. Abbreviations, Acronyms and Glossary of Terms

A. Abbreviations and Acronyms

CEO

DG

CBK

ICPAK

IPSAS

MD

NT

OCOB

OAG

OSIIA

PFM

PPE

PSASB

SAGAs

ChiefExecutive Officer

Director General

Central Bank of Kenya

lnstitute ofCertified Public Accountants of Kenya

lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

Managing Director

National Treasury

OIfice of the Controller of Budget

OIfice of the Auditor General

Occupational Safety and Health Act of2007

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

Semi-Autonomous Govemment Agencies

B. Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management directly entrusted with the responsibility of
financial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastrucnre Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3At' June 2023

2. Key Fund information and management

a) Background information

Kenya Slum Upgrading, low-cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF) was

formed on 22nd December 2006, through a gazette notice no. 51, by legal notice no. 168 under

the Govemment Financial Management Act no. 5 of 2004.

At Cabinet level, the Trust Fund is represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Housing and Urban

Development who is responsible for the general policy and strategic direction ofthe fund.

b) Principal Activities

The principal activity of Trust Fund is to provide frrnds for slum upgrading, low-cost housing

and infi-astructure programmes to support housing development.

c) Board of Trustees/Fund Administration Committee

Chairperson Charles Hinga

Charles Omondi2 Other tnrstees/Committee Members

Pgad lytanager/ Administrator Mary Ndung'u3

lll



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost ltousing and Infrastructure Trusl Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

Key Fund and Information Management (Continued)

d) Key Management

e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

(Provide a h h-level desc lrcn o the ducia overs

f) Registered Offices

Ardhi House, 2nd Floor

Ngong Road.

P.O. Box 301l9-00100

Nairobi, Kenya

g) Fund Contacts

Telephone: (254) 20-27 18050

E-mail: PS@ardhihouse.co.ke

Website: www.ardhi.go.ke

h) Fund Bankers

Cooperative Bank of Kenya"
Parliament Road Branch
P.O. Box 48231-0010
Nairobi, Kenya

Housing Finance Company
Rehani House Branch
P.O. Box 30088
Nairobi

arran menls coven sa

Mary Ndung'uI Fund Manager/ Administrator

David MusauFund Accountant2

Elizabeth Bosibori3 Procurement Officer

Methucella MokuaI Directorate Internal Audit

lv



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements lor the year ended 3P June 2023

Key Fund and Information Managemetrt (Continued)

i) Independent Auditor

Auditor-General

Office of The Auditor General

Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Aftomey General

State Law Office and Department of Justice

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 401 l2

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya
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Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

3. The Board of Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee

Mr. Hinga was born in 1975. He is a Chartered Accountant (CA)

and holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting) degree from

Kenyatta University in addition to Bachelor ofAccounting Science

(Honors) from University of South Africa. His core competencies

include project and structured finance, deal strucluring and

business developmenl. Unlil the time of his appointment as the

Principal Secrelary ol Housing and Urban Developmenl he was

the Group Chairman of an advisory boutique wilh presence in

South Africa and Kenya

l. Mr. Charles M.
Ilinge, CBS, CA(SA)

Principsl Secretrry
State Department of Housing

md Urban Development

Mary Ndung'u holds a degree in Social Services from University

of Nairobi, Maslers in Environmental Planning and Management

from University ofNairobi, Postgraduate Diploma in Housing.

She has 28 yeurs ofexperience housing and urban development

sector

2.Mary Ndung'u
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl Housing and InJrastnrcture I'rust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

4. Management Team

Mary Ndung'u holds a degree in Social Services

.from University of Nairobi, Masters of

Environmental Planning und Management from
University of Nairobi, Postgraduate Diploma in

Housing. She has 28 years ofexperience housing

and urban development seclor.Mary ll/anjiku Ndung'u

Direclor

Charles Liyayi holds a degree in Bachelor of

Commerce (Finance Option from CUEA),

Masters ofScience in Finance and Accounts

from KCA University. He is Certified Public

Accountanl of Kenya (ICPAK). He has over 30

years of experience in fnancial and auditing

seclors.

CPA Charles Liyayi Shidzugane

Senior Deputlt Accountanl General

George Omondi holds a degree in Building

Economics from University of Nairobi, Maslers

in Project Planning and Management from UoN.

He has experience of over 30 years in qudntity

surveying.

George Charles Omontli

Deputy Director

(Note: The Fund Administrator will feature under both lhe 'Trustee/Fund committee' and

'Management').
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5. Chairman's Report

The Kenya Slum Upgrading, tow-Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

implements programmes, projects and activities aimed at improving the Iives and livelihood of
people living and working in slums/informal scttlements countrywide. In its pursuit of this core

mandate, the Programme is fulfilling thc constitutional mandate undcr Article 43 (l) (b) of the

Constitution ofKcnya 2010 which emphasizes the right of evcry person to accessible and adequate

housing and to reasonable standards of sanitation.

Project implementation
The Programme seeks to fulflll two key strategic objectives namely: - To facilitate access to

adequate housing and to improve livelihoods ofpeople living and working in slums and informal

settlemcnts.

Towards this goal, the Trust Fund has two mega projects that have been part of the Ministerial

Performance Contract. These include redevelopment of 822 houscs and infrastructuro in Kibcra

Soweto Zone A at a total cost of 2,908,440,769 and construction of 463 houses at Mavoko SNP

Athi River at a total cost of 134O,O22,248. The Kibera housing project is l00o% complete with

housing units futly occupied. The Pro-ject has also delivered other social infrastructures such as

social halls, youth centre and markets stalls. The Mavoko project on the other hand is 100%

completc and is being uscd in piloting the concept ofsustainable neighborhoods.

---'\={4:

ding, Low Cost llousing and Infro
F'inancial Statentents for the year

structure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
ended 3{lt' June 202 3

/,-.L
Impact on the Community

The programme was initiated with a corc poverty mandate to upgrade, prevent and eradicate slums

in Kenya. Thc projects supported through this prograr ne are geared towards the provision of

vtll
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social and physical inlrastnlcture to the rcsidents living and working in slums and inlormal
settlcmcnts.
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On a pilot hasis, the programmc has managcd lo construct a total of 1,284 No. ol housing units
and providcd thcm at subsidizcd costs to slunr rcsidents. lInder this arrangement, a total of822
houscholds havc been allocatctl dccent houscs through the Kibera Soweto East Zone'A'project
while thc process of idcntifying bencficiarics of the Mavoko Sustainable Ncighborhood
Progranrnrc rs underway. Thcsc prqects havc brought positivc impact to the slunr communities
rvho arc porccivcd to bc marginalized by the mainstream housing market and thus scrvcd to uplift
their wcl[are .

Planned projccts
The Tmst liLrnd has commcnced developnrent ol'an additional 20,825 social housing units and

associatcd inliastructurc. This has startcd with bcdsitter units which is part of thr: 13,700 houscs

at the Kcnya Meteorological sitc in Industrial Arca. The procuremcnt ofcontracts lor 4,435 houscs

in Kibcra Sowcto East Zonc '[]', Nairobi is in its final stages whilc planning for 2,690 units in

Mariguini lnfbrmal Settlements is ongoing. Additional infrastruclurc comprising of mass lighting
projccts, roads and school construction as wcll ls othcr social amcnities has bcen schcduled in
slums and infomal settlcments in various countics. The prqccts arc estimatcd to cost Ksh

29,615,4 I11,129.00 in the coming ycars.
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Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Wa Forwsrd
The t remains committed in uplifting the lives of the low income Kenyans through this

This is evident from the budget allocations by the National Treasury which has

ed the Trust to progress well with its mandate. However, there is still need for the govemment

other sources of funds including engaging development partners to enable the Tnrst Fund

ge its mandate more effectively.

M. t{m84 , CA(SA)
al Secretary
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure T'rust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3At' June 2023

6. Rcport Of the Fund Manager/ Administrator

Objective Key Performance
Itrdicrtors Activities

Achievements

Pillar/ theme/ issue l: Construction ofSocial Ilousiuq
Improve
livelihoods of
people living
and working in
slums and
informal areas

No. ofunits Construction of463No. housing units al
Mavoko SNP

463 housing units
completed and a cabinet
memo on the salc submitted
to Cabinet

Perc€ntage of
completion

Construction of 13,700 housing units at
the Kenya Meteorological Site at Mukuru

Tender awarded

Percentage of
completion

Construction of4,435 housing units at
Kibera Soweto Zone 'B'

Tcnder stage

Percentage of
completion

Construction of2690 social housing units
at Mariguini Informal area

Planning ongoing

Pillar/ thcm€y' issue 2: Instrllstio[ of Physicsl rnd Social Infr.structure in Slums rDd Ioformd Arers
Improve
livelihoods of
people living
rnd working in
slums and
hformal areas

Percentagc of
completion

Construction of Uhuru Business Park
Kjsumu Town, Kisumu County

100% Completed

Percentage of
completion

Uhuru Business Park Kisumu Town,
Kisumu County - Civil and other Extemal
Work for Phase I (Presidential Directive)

lnstallation of6no. Electric high mast
floodlighting structures

100% Complcted

Percentage of
completion

100% Completed

Percentage of
completion

Installation of6no. Electric high mast
fl oodlighting structules

100% Completed

Pcrcenlage of
completion

Construction and upgrading of6.5 km
sewer line i. Athi River, Mavoko

100% Completed

Percentage of
completion

Proposed Upgading of 3.5KM,
Chepareria Town to Propoi Secondary
School Road to Bitumcn Standards

100% Completed

Pcrcentage of
completion

Construction of Market stalls in Buchifi,
Mumias

I00% Completed

Percentage of
completion

Construction of Market stalls in Musanda.
Mumias, Kakamega County

100% Completed

Percentage of
comDletion

Construction of Social Hall in Majengo
Slums, Meru Town

100% Complcted

Percentage of
completion

Construction of5 No. Classrooms,
Administration & Ablution Blocks in
Kiwanjani Primary School, Isiolo Town,
lsiolo County.

100% Compleled

Percentagc of
completion

Fencing to Kibera Soweto East Zone 'B'
Sitc

100% Complcted

Percentage of
completion

Inslallation of6No. Highmast flood
lishtins slructures

100% Completed

Pcrcentage of
completion

Installation of3No. Highmast flood
liehtins structures

100% Complcted

Percentage of
completion

Installation of 3No. Highmast flood
lishtins structures

100% Complcted

Pcrcentage of
letion

Installation of3No, Highmasl flood
lightins structurcs

100% C-ompleted

xt
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100% CompletedPerccntage of
completion

tnslallation of 6No- Electric Powered
High Masl Flood Lighting Structues

100% CompletedInstallation of 6No. Elcctric Powered
High Mast Flood Ligh(ing Structures in
Ukunda (Diani) Town.

Perccntage of
completion

1009'0 ComplctedInstallation of 6No. Electric Powered
High Mast Flood Lighting Structures, in
Voi Town

Percentage of
completion

100% ComplctedInstallation of6no. Electric powered high
mast flood lighting structures in,
Bungoma town

Percentage of
completion

100% ComplctedInstallation of6no. Electric high mast

floodlighting structues in Thika town
Percentage of
completion

100% CompletedPercentage of
completion

Installation of6no. Electric high mast

floodlighting structuros in Mwiki
l00o/o Completedlnslallation of t5no. Electric Powered

Highmas Flood Lighting Structures
Perccntage of
completion

100% CompletedInstallation of 5no. Electric Powcred
Highmast Flood Lighting Structures in
liara Constitucncy, Garissa County

Percentage of
completion

100% Complet€dInstallation of6No. Highmast flood
lighting s,tructures in l-odwar

Perccntage of
completion

100% Complet€dPercentage of
completion

lnstallation of6No. Highmast flood
lighting slructules in Nairobi

100% CompletedInstallation ofgNo. Highmast flood
lighting structures in Bungoma County

Perccntage of
completion

100% CompletedPercentagc of
completion

Installation of 5No. Highmast flood
lighting structures in Kitui County

100% CompletedPercentage of
completion

Footbridgc connecting Gikomba Market
and t-andhies Road

100% CompletedPerccntage of
completion

Footbridge at New Pumwani Road Bridgc
connecting Machakos Country Bus Stagc
and Gikomba

100% CompletedPercentage of
completion

Upgrading of3.7KM KCB Slaughter
House Road to Bitumen Standards in
Mavoko Slum, Mwingi Town- Kitui
County

100% CompletedPerccntage of
completion

Upgrading of 1.5 KM road to murram
standards in Mjini Sh-rms, Meru Town.
Mcru County.

100% CompletedPerccntage of
completion

Upgrading of ]'4 km road to cabro
slandards at Zimmerman scttlsmcnt

100% CompletedPercentage of
compl€tion

Proposed Upgrading of 3.lkm Road to
Bitumcn Standards in Mworoga and
Makutano [nfomal Settlements
Facilitation for the relocation of Kibcra
Soweto East, Zone 'B' PAPS

100% ComplctedPcrcentagc of
completion

Percentage of
completion

Construction Civil & other Associated
Works for Social Housing Project at
Meteorolosical Site (Lot I )

20% Ongoing

Percentage of lnslallation of3No. Highmast flood 100% Completed

letion li structures
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Percentage of
completion

Civil & other Associatcd Works for Social
llousing Project at Meteorological Site

20o/o Ongoing

Lot 2

Percentage of
completion

Proposed Outbuilding and Associated
Electromechanical Services Works for
Social Housing Project at Meteorological
Site (Lot 3)

20%o Ongoing

Perccntage of
completion

Construction of 4No. Classrooms,
Ablution Block& Associatcd sewer
system, Administration Block, Kitchen &
lNo. Dormitory at Chiakariga Girls
Secondary School

659/o complere

Percentage of
completion

Construction of Mlimani Primary School,
Nakuru

40% complete

Pcrcentage of
completion

Construction of Health Centre at Kisumu
Ndogo [nformal Scnlement, Malindi -
Kilifi County

35Yo complete

Percentage of
complction

Construction of4KM Sewerlinc at
Nyagachok, Kericho

957o complete

Percentage of
completion

Construction of Market Sheds at Sang'alo
Market, Bungoma County

85Yo completc

Percentage of
completion

Construction of Markct Sheds at Bondeni
are4 Kita.le, Trans Nzoia County

80oZ complete

Percentage of
completion

Construction of Market Sheds in Ngaru,
Kirinyaga County

957o complete

Percentage of
completion

Propos€d Market sheds in Ijara
Constituency, Garissa Counly

95olo completc

Percentage of
completion

Construclion of a Modcrn Multipurpose
Market, Nakuru County

407o completc

Percentage of
completion

Upgrading of3.5KM road to bitumen
slandards in Londiani, Kericho County

Percentage of
completion

Upgrading of Dagoretti Market Acccss
Road to Bitumen Standards Nairobi
City County

957o complete

507o completc

Percentage of
completion

Upgrading of3.gkm Road to Bitumen
Standards in Gitogothi, Makaburini and
Mariko in Limuru, Kiambu County.

95oZ compl€te

xllr
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7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

The Trustees submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

30th June 2023, in accordance with the provisions of Section 8l of the Public Finance

Management Act,20l2.

Principal activities

The mandate of the Trust Fund is to implement programmes, projects and activities aimed at

improving the lives and livelihood of people living and working in slums and informal settlements

countrywide,

Relults

ThO results for the Trust Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2023 are set out on Page l.

Trustees

The trustees who held offrce during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page vi.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Trust Fund's books ofaccount in

accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution ofKenya and the Public Audit

Act, 2015

By order of the Trustees

Charles M. Hinga, CBS, CA(SA)
Principal Secretary

(

xrv



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl llousing and lnfrastnrcture T'rusl Fund (KENSUF)
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8. Corporate Govcrnance Statement

Section 8l ofthe Public Finance Managemcnt Act,20l2 and Government Financial Trustees Act
no.5 ol 2004, requirc the Trustees to prepare financial statements in respect of the Trust Fund,
which give a true and fair vicw of the state of allairs of the Trust Fund at the end of the financial
year and the operating results of the Trust Fund for that year. 'Ihe trustees are also required to
ensure that the Trust Fund keeps propcr accounting records which disclose with reasonable

accuracy the financial position ofthc Trust Fund. The trustces arc also responsible for safeguarding
thc asscts of the Trust Fund.

The Trustees are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Trust Fund's financial

statements, which give a ttue and lair view of thc state of affairs of the Trust Fund for and as at the

end of the firnancial year ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining
adequate financial management arrangemcnts and ensuring that these continue to be effective
throughout the reporting period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Trust Fund; (iii) designing,

implementing and maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements, and ensuring that they arc free from material misstatements, whether due

to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the 'l-rust Fund; (v) selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) rnaking accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

The Trustees accept responsibility for the l'rust Fund's financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropnate accounting policies supported by reasonable and pmdentjudgments and

estimates, in conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the

manner requircd by thc I'FM Act, 2012 and the Government Financial Trustees Act. The Tnstees

are ofthe opinion that the Trust Fund's financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
Trust Fund's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the Trust Fund's

financial position as at that date. The Trustees further confirm the completeness of the accounting

records maintained for the Trust Fund, which have been rclied upon in thc preparation of the'l'rust
l'und's financial statements as well as the adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Trustees to indicate that the Trust Fund will not remain a

going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of tlus statement.

Approval of thc financial stat€ments

The Trust Fund's hnancial statements were approved by the Trustees on -3e' i t 2023

srgncd on its b{ralf by:

TrusteeTrustec
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

Operational Performance of the Fund
The Kenya Slum Upgrading, low-Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

implements programnres, projects and activities aimed at improving the lives and livelihood of
people living and working in slums/informal settlements countrywide. ln its pursuit of this core

mandate, the Programme is fulflrlling the constitutional mandate under Article 43 (l) (b) of the

Constitution ofKenya 2010 which emphasizes the right ofevery person to accessible and adequate

housing and to reasonable standards of sanitation.

The Programme seeks to fulfill two key strategic objectives namely: - To facilitate access to

adequate housing and to improve livetihoods of people living and working in slums and informal

settlements.

Towards this goal, the Trust Fund has two mega projects that have been part of the Ministerial
Perfurmance Contract. These include redevelopment of822 houses and infrastruchrre in Kibera
Soweto Zone A at a total cost of2 ,908,440,769 and construction of463 houses at Mavoko SNP

Athi River at a total cost of 'l ,34O,O22,24a. The Kibera housing project is 100%o complete with
housing units fully occupied.

xvl
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10. Environmentxl rnd Susteinebility Reporting

Sustainable Development

Reduction of slums - Reduction and ultimate eradication of slums through slum upgrading.

Deceut work and economic g:owth - Increased productivity as a result of improved

infrastructures within the informal settlements

Environmental Performance

To improve quality of life - provision of adequate lighting within the informal settlements

through installation of high floodlight masts and improved infi'astructure.

To protect the envirooment tbrough unblocking and drainage ofsewerage systems/line.

Community Eng.gement

lnvolve the comrn,rnity in public participation in the development and improvement of the

informal settlements.

xvll
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11. Report of The Trustees/ Fund Administration Committee

The TrusteeVFund Administration Committee submit their report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, which show the state ofthe Fund's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Fund is improving the lives and livelihood of people living and

working in slumVinformal settlements countryT/ide

Performance

The performance ofthe Fund for the year ended June 30,2023, is set out on page I of the Financial

Statements

Truitees

The members of the Board of Trustee I Administralion Commitlee who served during the year are

shown on page vi.

Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit ofthe Fund in accordance with Article

229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audil Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

rt and Financial Statements for lhe year ended 3Uh June 2023

Chair of the Board/ Fund Administration Committee

xvlll
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12. Statemcnt of Management's Responsibilities

Section 84 (l) of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requircs that, at thc end of each

financial year, the Administrator ofa Fund established on 22 December 2006, through o gazetle

nolice no. 51, by lhe legal nolice no.l68 under the Government Financial Management Act no.5

of 2004 shall prepare financial statements lor the Fund in accordance with the standards and

formats prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board.

The Administrator of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Fund's

financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs ofthe Fund for and as at

the end of the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This rcsponsibility includes: (i)maintaining

adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective

throughout the reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the hnancial position of the fund, (iii)Designing, implementi-ng and

maintaining intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial

statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or

fraud, (iv)Safeguarding the assets of the fund; (v)Selecting and applying appropriate accounting

policies, and (vi)Making accounting estimates that arc reasonable in the circumstances.

The Administrator ofthe Fund accepts responsibility for the Fund's financial statements, which havc

been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent

judgcments and estimates, in conformity with lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards

(IPSAS), and in the manner requircd by the PFM Act, 2Ol2 and through a gazette nolice no. 51, by

fhe legal notice no.l68 uruler the Government Financial Managemenl Act no.5 of 2004. The

Administrator ofthe Fund is ofthe opinion that the Fund's financial statements give a true and fair

view of the state of Fund's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the

Fund's financial position a-s at that date.

The Administrator further confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the

Fund, which have been relied upon in the preparation olthe Fund's financial statements as well as

the adequacy ofthe systems of intcmal financial control. [n preparing the financial statements, the

Administrator ofthe Fund has assessed the Fund's ability to continue as a going concem (disclosed,

as applicable, matters relaling to the use of gting concern basis of preparation of the fnancial

xtx
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or nothing bas come to the attention ofthe Administrator to indic€te that the FuDd will

a going concern for at least the n€)(t twelve montbs from tLe 6u16 ef this stat€m€at.

vd of the financlal ctttements

The b fuaicial stat€rrx€nts were approved by the Board on 3D'tl, 2023aro-

on its behalfby:

/R

stu/

not

N Name: Mfterl' vtJ'^lN''^Gr./

ftnd Admlnfutretorofthe Ftnd
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n h a n c i n g A c' co unt a b i I ity

HEADqUARTER5
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box joo84-ooloo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA SLUM UPGRADING LOW COST
HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE, 2023 - STATE DEPARTMENT FOR HOUSING AND URBAN
DEVELOPMENT

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot lhe Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Slum Upgrading Low
Cost Housing and lnfrastructure Trust Fund set out on pages 1 to 41 which comprise the

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenl'a Shtm upgrading Lo*' Cost Housing an<l lnlraslructure Trust Fund.[or thc
year ended 30.htne, 2023 Stote Deparlmenlfor Housing and Urbqn Development



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement
of comparison of budget and ac{ual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Kenya Slum Upgrading Low Cost Housing and lnfrastructure Trust Fund
as at 30 June,2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Acl,2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Slum Upgrading Low Cost Housing
and lnfrastructure Trust Fund Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of
Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Outstanding Pending Bills

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.745,644,066 in respect of
payables from exchange transaction which includes an amount of Kshs.404,829,430
dues to contractors (pending bills), in respect of works done and certified but not paid.
However, Management did not provide reasons for the non- payments of the dues despite
having a cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.822,574,544 as at 30 June, 2023.
Failure to settle bills in the year to which they relate adversely affects the following year's
provision to which they form the first charge. ln addition, the Fund risk incurring penalties
and interest costs due to delayed payments.

My opinion is not modified due to the effects of the above matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year lssues

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under Basis for
Qualification Opinion section. Although the Fund Management indicated that the issues

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenyo Slum Upgrading Low Cost Housing and lnfrqslructure Trust Fund for the
year ended 30 June, 2023 Stqte Depqrlment for Housing and Urban Development
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have been resolved, no evidence was provided to support this position. These issues
therefore remained unresolved contrary to the provisions of Section 149(2)(l) of the Public
Finance Management Act,2012 which require the Accounting Officers designated to try
to resolve any issues resulting from an audit that remain outstanding.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Constitute a Board of Trustees for the Fund

Examination of the Fund's records showed that Board of Trustees for the Fund had not
been constituted. Further, there was no evidence that the Minister responsible for matters
relating to Housing had appointed trustees as stipulated under Regulation '10(2). This is

contrary to Regulation 10(1) and (2) of the Government Financial Management (Kenya
Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and lnfrastructure Fund) Regulation, 2006.

ln the circumstances, the Fund was in breach of the law.

2. Delayed Project lmplementation

Review of the project implementation status report showed that 32 projects with a total
contract sum of Kshs.2,81 1 ,550,739 had not been completed despite their completion
date having lapsed at between 104o/o and 385%. The total amounts certified and paid for
the projects was Kshs.3,542,449,178.

2.1 Proposed Gonstruction of School lnfrastructure - Tharaka Nithi

The Fund entered into contract with a transport and construction company for
construction of 4No. Classrooms, Ablution Block and Associated Sewer System,
Administration Block, Kitchen and 1No. Dormitory at Girls Secondary School at contract
sum of Kshs.79,544,920. The project's commencement and completion date were
13 August, 2020 and 12 August, 2021 respectively. The completion date was revised to
27 January, 2022. However, as at 30 June, 2023, the project had stalled and was at 70%
complete wilh a 214o/o time lapsed. A sum of Kshs.49,726,437 or 63o/o of contract sum
had been paid. The contractor was issued with a default notices on 22 February,2022
based on clauses 33.1 and 33.3 of the conditions of contract which states that the
employer may terminate the contract if the contractor causes a fundamental breach of the
contract. The breach of the contract entailed continued disregard of site instructions
issued to the contractor, considerably slowed down progress of works with inadequate
labor and materials on site and the contract period has elapsed. However, there was no

Rt'prtrt ol tha ,,luditor-Gencral on Ken.tu Slum Upgrctding Lov ('ost Housittg etld ltlreslntclure Trust Ftotd fbr the
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evidence to show that the State Department for Housing and Urban Development
commenced the process of ternrination of the contract despite issuing the default notice.

Delayed implementation of project, denied the public benefits that could have accrued
from the completed project and value for money for the amount of Kshs.49,726,437
already incurred could not be confirmed.

2.2 Construction of a Health Centre, Kilifi County

The Fund awarded a contract to a Contractor for construction of a Health Centre at
Kisumu Ndogo/Muyeye lnformal Settlement in Malindi at contract sum of
Kshs.48,805,790. The project's commencement and completion date were
6 January, 2021 and 7 September, 2021 respectively. The completion date was revised
to 31 January, 2023.However, at 30 June, 2023, the project had stalled at 75% complete
wilh a 417% time lapsed but only a sum ofKshs.l 9,889,655 or 41o/o of contract sum had
been paid.

On 3 October, 2023, the State Department for Housing and Urban Development invoked
Clauses 33.1 (a) which states that the employer may commence the process termination
if the Contractor stops work for 30 days and the stoppage has not been authorized by the
Project Manager. The contractor was issued with a default notices due to none activity on
site. Further, the contract period had expired and the Contractor's performance bond had
also expired and has not been renewed.

lnspection of the project revealed that the roof is leaking at the theatre as the joints to the
precast concrete tiles have not been sealed and drainage on the roof has not been
completed. This has led to rainwater stagnating in some sections. Despite the
deficiencies, the State Department for Housing and Urban Development had not
commenced the process of termination of the contract. Delayed implementation of the
project denied the public benefits that could have accrued from the completed project.

2.3 Proposed Construction of Civil Works for Roads and Other External Works

The Fund entered into a contract with a construction company to do Proposed
construction of Civil Works for Roads and Other External Works in Social Housing- Met
Site (Lot 1) at a contract sum of Kshs.430,970,890. The project's commencement and
completion dates were 25 March, 2021 and 8 September, 2022 respectively. However,
completion date was revised to 9 April, 2023. At 30 June, 2023, the project was at 76%
complete with 124%time lapse but a sum of Kshs.427,825,1 07 or 99o/o of contract sum
had been certified and paid. This is an indication that the actual payments exceed the
percentage of the works completed. Delayed implementation of project, denied the public
the benefits that could have accrued from the completed project.

ln the circumstances, value for money could not be ascertained and project delays and
bottlenecks may result to cost variations.

Report of the Auditor-Cencral ott Kenya Sl,rrllz Upgrading Lot Cost Housing and lnfrostructura Trust Fund lor the
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3. lnterest Accrued for Non-Payments of Certified Works

The Fund entered into a contract with a construction company for construction, designing,
building and financing of housing units and associated infrastructure for Kibera Soweto
East Zone B, Nairobi Project.

Clause 33 under the Conditions to the contract on offtake and milestone payments
provides that the procuring entity shall pay the contractor the amounts due within 90 days
of the date of issue of request for payment. lf the procuring entity makes a late payment,
the contractor shall be paid simple interest on the late payment in the next payment.

The contractor submitted the request for payment of an amount of Kshs.624,700,160 on
26 October, 2022.The payment became due on 24 January,2023. However, the State
Department did not pay the certificates by the close of the year resulting to accrued
interest amount of Kshs.42,375,037 as at 30 June, 2023.

ln the circumstances, value for money and effective use of public resources could not be
confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Gonclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, lconfirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audlt was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence lhave
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
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misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless the
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
reporting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
and systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Anide 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a rnaterial misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
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the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the irrrernal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

a

a

a

a Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances
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I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the.audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
whete applicable, related safeguards.

FCP Ga BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

11 January,2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Kenya Slum Upgrading Low Cost Housing and Infrastucture Trust Fund for the
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low C.ost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial'statements for the year ended 3Uh June 2023

14. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30th June 2023.

REVENUE
Revenue from non{xchange transSctions

Finance Income 7 t9,7t3,t36 56,665,607

s6,66s,607t9,213,136

EXPENDITURE
90,150,000Subsidy from Disposal ofHouses 8

Administrative and Other Operating Costs 9 62,613,396 54,151,293

Depreciation and Amortiza tion Costs l0 70,486,085 73,385,038

133,099,481 2r7,686331Totsl expenses

(113,886J4s) (161,020,7u)DeficiUSurplus for th€ Year

The financial statements were approved on

\
3c il.aelg h..

,-t .ji-iilv;v?r{ 
Name dLarG bicName

Principal-Secretary

Name N{ i-J}

Director/Fund Admiristrator Senior Deputy Accountant
General
ICPAK No. 5068



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and lnfrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and f'inuncial Statements for the year ended 3th June 2023

15. Statement of Financial Position as at 30th Junc 2023

The accounting policies and explanatory notes to these financial statements florm an integral part of the
6nancial statements.

The Fund financial statements were approved on 30'1( 2023 and signedby

2

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents ll 822,574,544 518,262,835

Receivablcs from exchange transactions t2 128,559,990 360,709,990

Total Current Assets 951,134,534 878,972,825

Non-current assets

Receivables from exchange transactions t2 1,040,404,41 8 I ,210,257,625
Work ln Progress t3 9,286,510,854 7,818,429,056

t4
2,631,793,949 2,702,280,032

Property, plant, and equipment

Total Non-Current Assets 12,958,709,222 1t,,730,966,714

13,909,843,757 12,609,939,539Total Assets

Liatlilities

Payables lrom Exchange Transactions t5
7 45,644,066 486,853,503

745.644,066Total Liabilities
486,853,s03

13,164,199,691 12,123,086,036Net assets

REPRESENTED BY:

t 84,823,660 298,710,005General Reserve

12,979376,031 tt,824,376,031GOK Development Reserve

12,123,086,03613,164,199,691.00Total Net Assets and Liabilities



Slum Upgrading Iaw Cost Housing and Infrastrucure Trust Fuad (KEMUF)
and Statea,€nts the ended iN June 2023

I"uN

\--S-il
Nmc Meil^l. r,7 r{fu"/rv
Dlrector/Fund Adrnblttrrtor

xu" (, 7

Seoior Deputy Acclutrtrnt
Gcucnl
ICPAtr( No. 5068

Secretrry
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and lnfrastricrure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

16. Statement ofChanges in Net Assets for the year ended 30th June 2023

As at I July 2021 369,580,729 t0,699,526,03r r 1,069,106,760

Surplus/(derci,) for the period (t6t,020,724) (t6t,020,724)
Funds received during the year I,21 5,000,000 1,215,000,000

lnterest capitalized+

Transfers 90,150,000 (90,1s0.000)

As st 30 June 2022 298,?10,005 11,824,316,031 12,123,086,036

Balance as at 1 July 2022 298,710,005 lt,824,376,03| 12,123,086,036

S,xplvsl(deicit) for the period (l 13,886,345) (1 13,886,345)

Funds received during the year 1,155,000,000 1,155,000,000

Interest capitalized+

Transfers

As at 30 June 2023 r84,823,660 12,979,316,031 13,164,199,691
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Kenya Slum Upgra
Annual Reporl and

ding, Low Cost Housing arul lnfrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Financial Slalements for lhe year ended 3Ut' June 2023

17. Statement ofCash Flows for the year ended 30th June 2023

(PSASB has prescribed the direct method ofcashflow preparation/ presenlationlot entities reporling
under IPSAS Accrual basis ofaccounting)

5

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts
28,535,326t2 37 ,242,748Mortgage Installments

l,r 55,000,000 1,215,000,0006Govemment Grants and Subsidies

300,000,000't2 232,150,000Proceeds from Sale ofhouses
38,838,842'7 l,882,866Finance Income

750,000,000Net Receipts lrom related Parties

38,001,334 437,000l5Deposits For Houses

2332,81t,1681,464,276,948Total Receipts

Poyments

I 62,298,492 s3,662,370Goods and Services

9 314,905 488,922Finance Costs

7,589,243t4Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment

750,000,000Net Payments to Related Panies

2,585,538,706t6 I ,097 ,35t,842Contractors

r,rs9,965239 3397,279242Total Psyments

304J r 1,709 (1,064,468,074)Net cash flow from operating activities

304J 11,709 (r,064,468,074)Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

5t8,262,835 I,582,730,909l6Cash and cash equivalents at I July

t6 E22,574,544 sr8,262,835Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure l'rust Fund (KENSIJF)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements for lhe year ended 3(/h June 2023

18. Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts for the year ended 30th June

2023

Revenue

Govemment Grants
and Subsidies 1,155,000,000 1.155,000,000 1,155,000,000

l00o/o

Finance Income
20,000,000 20,000,000 t9,2t3,136 960/o

Total Revenue 1,175,000,000 1,175,000,000
t,t7 4,2t3,136

99.9

Expenditure

Finance Costs 320,000 320,000.00 314,905 98%

Use of Goods and
Services

70,000,000 70,000,000.00 62,298,492 89%

Depreciation and
Amortization 70,486,085 70,486,085.00 70,486,085 100v"

Work In Progess 1,034,193,915 1,034,193,915 1,468,081,798 t42%

Total Expenditure r,175,000,000 1,175,000,000 1,601,,181279 1360/"

Deficit for the
period 0 0 (426,968,t43',)

RECONCILIATION

Deficit as Per Statement of Budget and Actual Amounts

Work in Progress

Subsidy from Sale of Houses

Transfer to Development Reserve

Deficit as per Statement of Financial Performance

(426,968,143)

I,468,081,798

155 000

GE,E!5J45)
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Kenya Slum Upgrading,
Annual Report and Fina

and Infrastructure 'lr*st l?und (KENSUF)
r the year ended 3dh June 2023

Low Cost Horcing
ncial Slalemenls fo

l9- Notes to the Financial Statements

l. General Information
Kenya Slum Upgrading, l,ow-cost Housing and lnfrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF) was

formed on 22nd December 2006, through a g^zette notice no. 51, by legal notice no. 168 under

the Govemment Financial Management Act no. 5 of 2004. At Cabinet level, the Trust Fund is

represented by the Cabinet Secretary for Transport, Infrastructure, Housing, Urban Development
and Public Works who is responsible lor the general policy and strategic direction ofthe fund.

2. Statement ofcomoliance and basis of I) reoaration
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except lor the

m€asurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimaled recoverable amounts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational Public Sector

Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires

management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Trusl's accounting policies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or where assumptions and

eslimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5. The financial

statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the functional and

reporting currency of the Trust.

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) issued by lntemational Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board (IPSASB), the Public Financial Management Act, 2012, Public Audit Act, 2015

and Kenya Roads Act 2007. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to
all the years presented.

3. Adoption ofNew and Revised Standards
Several new and revised standards and interpretations were effective during the year. The
directors have evaluated the impact ofthe new standards and interpretations and none ofthem
had an impact on the Authority's financial statements.

New and amended standards and inlerprelations in issue efective in the year ended 30

June 2023.

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4t:. Applicable: l"t January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

finanoial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relcvant and useful information to users of financial
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastruclurc T'rust Fund (KENSIJF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3Uh June 2023

statements for their assessment ol the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Appllng a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

. Appllng a single forward-looking expected credit loss model

that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as

part ofthe risk management slrategy.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: I "t January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance,

faithful representativeness and comparability of the information

that a reporting Entity provides in its financial statements about

social benefits. The information provided should help users ofthe

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key feahrres of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

Applicable: I st January 2023:
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended jAh June 2023

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related

to the components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently omifted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative

examples on hedging and credit risk which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifoing hnancial instruments on initial adoption of

accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4t,

C)ther

improvements

IPSAS

to

Applicable Id January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial lnformation about the

General Covernment Seclor.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts

(sNA 2008).

. IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is

no longer defined in IPSAS.

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is

now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l't

January 2023.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

New and amended standards and interprelations in issue bul not yel effective in the
year ended 30 June 2023.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trwt Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for thc year ended 3(lh June 2023

IPSAS 43 Applicable In January 2025

The standard sets out the principles lor the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure ofleases. The objective is

to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a

manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This information

gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and

cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right ofuse assets and lease liabilities.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable In January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of financial performance.

This has no impact on the financial statements for the fund

iii. Early adoplion of standards

The Entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the f,rnancial year or
the entily adopted the following -standards early (state the standards, reason for early
adoption and impact on entity's rtnancial statements.)

l0



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing
Anntal Reporl and Financial Statements fo

and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
r the year ended 3Ah June 2023

4. SignificantAccountingPolicies
a. Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at

fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and

property) ifthe transfer is ftee lrom conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits

or service potential related to the asset will flow to the Fund and can be measured reliably.

To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give rise to a liability to

repay the amount, the amount is recorded in the statement of financial position and realised

in the statement of hnancial performance over the useful life of the assets that has been

acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset's

net carrying, amount. The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding lo determine

interest income for each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions musl be recognized when the shareholder's or the Entity's

right to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted lor on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl Housing and Infrastructure 'frust Fund (KIiNSUF)
Annual Report and F-inancial Statements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Budget information

The original bud get lor FY 2022-2023 was approvcd by the National Assembly on 9th June 2O22.

Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals lrom the appropriate authorities. The Trust Fund's budget is

prepared on a dif'ferenl basis to the actual income and expcnditure disclosed in the financial
statemenls. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based

on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is
prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual
basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as lhe approved

budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the

approved budget, is then presented in the statement ofcomparison ofbudget and actual amounts.

ln addition to the Basis difference, adjustmcnts to amounts in the financial statements are also
made for diffcrences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the prcsentation of
the financial slatemonts and the approvcd budget.

c. Property, plant, and equipment (PPE)

All property, plant and equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Cosl includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the items. When significant parts olproperty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the Fund recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspcction is performed, its cosl is

recognized in the carrying amounl of the plant and equipment as a replacemcnt if the

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are rccognized in

surplus, or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for

nil or nominal consideration the assc( is initially measured at its fair value.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost ofintangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date ofthe exchange. Following

initial rc.cognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and

accumulated impairment losses. lntemally gcnerated intangible assets, excluding capitalized

development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the

period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life o[the intangible assets is assessed as

either {inite or indefinite.
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Kenya Slum Upgra
Annual Report and

ding, Low Cost llousing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Financial Statements for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

e. Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying

amount includes the replacement cost of componenls of an existing investment property at the

time that cosl is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs ofday-to-day

maintenance ofan inveslment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange

transaction is measured al its fair valuc at the date of acquisition. Subsequent lo initial

recognition, investment properties are measured using the cosl model and are depreciated over

period or investment property is measured atlair value with gains and losses recognised through

surplus or deficir. Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed

of or when the investmcnt property is permanently withdrawn from usc and no future economic

benefit or service potcntial is expected from its disposal. The dilference belween the net disposal

proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is rccognized in the surplus or deficit in the period

of de-recognition

f. Financialinstruments

IPSAS 4l addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial asscts and

financial liabilities, introduces new rules fbr hedge accounting and a new impairment model lor

financial asscts. Iftc entity does not havc any hedge relatioruhips and therefore lhe new hedge

accounling rules have no impact on the Company's fnancial stalemenls. A financial instrument

is any contract that givcs rise to a financial asse( ofone entity and a financial liability or equity

irEtrument of another entity. At initial recognition, thc entity measures a financial asset or

financial liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or hnancial

liability not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue ofthe financial asset or financial liability.

Slgnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

I- Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The entity classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value

through net assets/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis ofboth the entity's

management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset is held

within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

t3



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost l{ousing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year endetl 30'h June 2023

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A

financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the

management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cashflows and

selling financial assets and the contractual tcrms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely pa).rnents of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus or deficit unless it

is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unlcss an entity has made

irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investmenls in equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the entity classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contrachral cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part ofa hedging relationship is rccognized

in profit or Ioss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interesl income from these financial

assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and
Annual Report and Financial Statemenls for lhe

Infrastructure T'rust Fund (KENSUF)
year ended 3dh June 2023

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection ofcontractual cash flows and for selling the financial

assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are

measured at fair value tfuough net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrlng amount are taken

through net assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and

foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interesl income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria lor amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity arc measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the entity

manages financial assets with the objective ofrealizing cash flows through solely the sale ofthe

assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Ttade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed lor impairment on a continuing basis. An

estimate is made ofdoubtful receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amounts at the year

end.

Impairment

The entity assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated with

its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The entity

recognizes a loss allowance for such losses al each reporting date. Critical estimates and

significant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl HotLsing und lnfrastructure Trust F'und (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

II. Financial liabilities

Classification

The entity classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for financial

liabilities measured through profit or loss.

g. Contingentliabilities
The Fund does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details ofany contingencies

in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources

embodf ng economic benefits or service potential is remote.

h. Contingent assets
The Fund does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details ofa possible asset whose

existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future

events not wholly within the control of the Fund in the notes to the financial statements.

Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately

reflected in the financial statements. If it has become virnrally certain that an inflow of

economic benefits or service fotential will arise and the asset's value can be measured

reliably, the asset and the related rcvenue are recognized in the financial statements of the

period in which the change occurs.

Nature and purpose of rcservesI

The Fund creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements

j. Changcs in accounting policies and estimates

Thc Fund recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy retrospectivcly. The effects

of changes in accounting policy are applicd prospectively if retrospective application is

impractical.
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Ho*sing and Infrastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)

Anrutal Report and Financial Sratements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

Signifi cant Accounting Policies (Continued)

k. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounled for at the ruling rate of exchange

on the date ofthc transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are

reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by appllng the exchange rate

on that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlemenl of creditors, or lrom the

reporting of creditors at rates differenl from those at which they were initially recorded

during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

l. Related parties

The Fund regards a related party as a person or entity with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Fund, or vice versa.

Mcmbers of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Directors/

Trustee, the Fund Managers, and Fund Accountant.

m. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on

call, and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or [ess, which

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of

changes in value. Banl account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks

at the end of the financial year.

n. Comparative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Events after the reporting period

There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after thc reporting period.

o

p. Ultimate and Holding Fund

The Fund is cstablished under Section 24 (4) PFM Act under the State Department of

Housing and Urban Development Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

q, Currency

The financial statcments are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs.).
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Kenyu Slum Upgrading, Low Cost [krusing and lfiastructure Trust Fund (KENSIJF)
Annual Report and Financiul Statcnents for the year ended 3Ah June 2023

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

5. Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the F'und's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts ol revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent

liabilities, at the end ofthe reporting period. l-Iowever, uncertainty about these assumptions

and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

a) Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Fund.

Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. (see IPSAS I . 140.)

b) Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators

to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

i) The condition ofthe assct is based on the assessment ofexperts employed by the

Fund

ii) The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in

technology and processes

iii) The nature ofthe prooesses in which the asset is deployed

iv) Availability of funding to replace the assel

v) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

l8



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infr
Anrual Reporl and Financial Statements for the yea

astructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
r ended 30h June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. Government Grants and Subsidies

6(b)Transfers from the Ministries, Departments and Agencies

7. Interest income

r,15s,000,000 I ,215,000,000GOK Development Funds
(1,21s,000,000)(l,1ss,000,000)Transfer to Development Fund

Total

r ,215,000,000I ,155,000,000 l ,l 55,000,000

State Department
of Housing and
Urban
Development

l,l 5s,000,000

1,215,000,000I,155,000,000 l,l55,ooo,o00Total r,r55,000,000

Arrlount
rccognizcd to
Stltcrncnt of
Iiinunci:rl
pcrfontta ncc.

7in(l

202 t/2022
Atuount
rccognizcd iu
rcvoh'ing fund.Namc of thc

[,ntity Scndillg
l,re (;ra ut

17,330,270 t7,826,765Mortgage Interest

38,838,842l,882,866Interest on Call Deposits

Other (Specify)

19113,136 s6,66s,607Totsl Interest Income
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cos! Housing and lfiastructure Trust Fund (KENSUF)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

8. Subsidy from Sale ofHouses

9. Administrative and Other Operating Costs

Sale Proceeds from Mavoko Houses 632,150,000

Cost of Houses Disposed (722,3O0,O0O)

Total Other income (90,1s0,000)

2,486,529 4,742,O77Advertising

Other Administration Expcnses 2,415,720 1,232,430

7,326,885 3 475 960Conferences and Delegations

9,048,627 2,794,797Water Charges

2,699,585 2,590,425Consumables

1,485,439Electricity
7,469,t76 9,468,132Vehicle Running Expenses

4,583,426Insurance

20t,265Postage

5,332,760 2,534,000Printing and Stationery

1,135,000Security Costs

1,929,000Telecommunications Costs

13,832,961 12,786,625Travelling and subsistence

s,990,0s99,864,985Training
314,905 488,922Bank Charges

Miscellaneous Expenses

00050Legal Fees

485,000Equipment Repairs

62.,613,396 54,151,293Total
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cosl Housing and Inlrastructure Trust Fund (KENEUF)

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

Notcs to the Financial Statements (continued)

10. Depreciation and Amortization Costs

I l. Cash and cash equivalents

Detailed analysis of the cash and cash equivalents

73,385,03870,486,085Property Plant and Equipment

73,385,03870,486,085Total

518,262,835822,574,544Current Accounts & Deposits on Call

822,574,544 5r8,262,835Total Cash and Cash equivalents

630,432,s97.00 218,263,s55.00Co-operative Bank OF Kenya

t92,t4t,947 .00 299,999,280.00Housing Finance Company

822,57 4,544.00 518,262,835.00G Total
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Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and lnlrastntcture Trust Fund (KENSIJF)
Annual Reporl <lnd Financial Statements Ior the year ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statcments (continued)

12, Receivables
(a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Reeivables constitute both short term and long term liquid assets which are recoverable. Mortgage
loans represent fund due from beneficiaries for the sale of the low --cost houses ard are recoverable in
accordance with the contract terms. Contract retention money represents funds retained from the
contractors which are held by the parent ministry. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair value ofeach class ofreceivable mentioned above. Mortgage loans are secured by the tide
to tre houses which are only surrendered on full recovery ofthe loan. The tmst fund does not hold any
collateral as security for the retention receivable. The aged analysis of receivables is as follows:

Current Receivables

Mortgage Receivables 28,559,990 28,5s9,990

Civil Servants Housing Fund 100,000,000 332,150,000

Total Current Receivables 128,559,990 360,709,990

Non-Current Receivables

Advance Pa)ments 2t0,7zt,630 349,t 69,394

Mortgage Receivable 536,969,01l 556,881,489

Contract Retention Monev 292,7 t3,777 3M,206,742
Total Non- Current
Receivables

1,040,404,418 1210,257,625

Total Receivatrles t,168,964,408 r,570,967,61s

The movement in the mortgage balances during the year is as shown below:

As at start ofthe year 585,44t ,4'79 5 96, 150,040

Interest for the year t7 ,330,270 t7,826,765

Recoveries during the year (37,242,748) (28,535,326)

As at 30 June 565,529,001 585,441,479

Receivables

Current 28,ss9,990 28,559,990

Non- Current 536,969,01I 556,881 ,489

565,529,00r 585,441,479



Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infraslructure Trwt Fund (KENSUF)

Anrwal Reporl and Financial Statements for the year ended 3dh June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Work In P ress

Work [n Progress comprise of incomplete houses and infrastructure. ln the opinion of Trustees,

the carrying amounts of the work in progress approximate to their fair value.

565,460,4s9536,900,46928,559,990Mortgage Receipts
292,713,7',7729?,713,777Contract Retention

Money
Grant Receivable

100,000,000100,000,000Civil Servants
Housing Fund

?to,72t,630210,72t,630Contract Advance
1.040335.877 r,r68,89s,867128.559,990Total

8,264,280,2477 ,8r8 ,429 ,056As at l't July
276,448,8091,468,081,798Additions

(722,100,000)Disposals

7,818,429,0569,286,510,8s4As at 30d' June

lmpairnrcnt alloN ancc/ prorision
KshsKshs
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Ke n.ya Slum Upgrading, Low L'o.st llousing and lnfra.ttructure l'rust l.'und (KI)NSUF)
Annual Report and f inuncial State,nent.\ for the year cnded 30'h June 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
14. Properly, Plant, and Equipment

Cost/ Valuation

As at lJuly 2021 17,311,600l, | 25,721.982 28,216,466 1 ,1 7 1 ,27 2,C)48

Additions during the ycar
2,124,500

4,864,'143
1 ,589,243

As Ar 30'h .lune 2022 3.125,721,982 20,058,r00 33,08t,209 3,178,86 t,291

Addilions during thc ycar

3,125,721,9a2 20,0s8,t00 JJ,081,209 J,t ?8,861,291At 30'h June 202J

Depreciation

7.25 1,2.1 I 24.2Ii1.1,(4 103.196,22 IAs At lJulv 202t 371,661,804

68.85 1.504
r,600,859

2,912,67s 7l,J 85,018(ihargc lor the year

At 30th.l ne 2022 8,852,090

t,400,751

27,2 | 5,859

t.955,I I 7

.176,581,261

70,486,085Charge lbr thc year

.t40,5r 3,J08

67,t30.2t1

s47,067J45507,643,525 10,252,841 29.110,976At Jo'h June 202J

Net book values

5,865,350 2,702,2E0,03J2 ,6a5,208,67 4 I 1,206,0r 0At 30rh.rune 2022

9,805,259 J,9t0,2lJ 2,6J I,793,9492,618,078,457At 30'h June 2023
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. Payables from Exchange Transactions
Non- Cu rrent

House Purchase Deposits 48, r 00,859 10,099,5 2 5

Due to Contractors 404,829,430 172,541.135

Contract Retention Money 292,',l I j.7'77 304.206.142

Total Payables from Exchange Transactions 145,644,066 {86,853,50J

16. Pa ment to Contractors

17. Financial risk management objectives and policies

'Ihe lrust Fund has an integrated risk management tiamework/ strategy. 'fhe Trust Fund's

approach to risk management is based on risk governance structures, risk managemcnt policies,

risk identificatron, measurement, monitoring and reportinB. 1he risk management policies and

systems are reviewed regularly to ensure they are in tandem with the micro and macro

environment, regulatory guidelines, industry practice, market conditions as well as the services

offbred.

'lhe'l'rust lrund recognizes the critical role the risk management will continue to play in its

endeavour to carry out its business in a dynamic environment. l'he Trustees are committed to

ensure that corporate governance and risk management are deeply entrenched in the Trust

Fund's strategy and culture. An elaborate risk management strategy that will provide direction

on matlers of policy and guide the implementation and control has been developed.

The l'rust Fund core business involves major engagements with financial transactions and

processes which pose certain risks.'l'hree types of risks are reported as part of the risk profile

namely operational, strategic and business continuity risks.

t72,547,235 2,t43,259,30tBalance as at I'r July
1,468,08 t ,798 672,08t,t33Expenditure during the year

(57,254,49t)(138,447,?64)Net advance payment
(404,829,430) tt72,547,235)Balance as at 30 June

2,585,538,708l,097J51,840Net Payments during the year
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(i) Operational risks are events, hazards, variances or opportunities which could influence

the achievement of the Trust Fund's compliance and operational objectives.

(ii) Strategic risk is a significant unexpected or unpredictable change or outcome beyond what

was lactored into the organization's strategy and business model which could have an impact

on the entity's performance.

(iii) Business continuity risks are those events, hazards, variances and opportunities which

could influence the continuity ofthe entity.

Trustees have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight ofthe Trust Fund's

risk management framework. The Trust Fund has delegated its risk management to the Audit

and Risk Committee of the parent ministry. One of the responsibilities of this committee is to

review risk management strategies to ensure that an effective efficient and transparent system

of risk management is maintained for sustainable management of the Trust Fund.

he Trust Fund's exposure to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk

and e methods used to measure it have been consistently applied in the years presented, unless

otherwise stated. The Trust Fund aims therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between the

risk and retum and minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The

financial management objectives and policies are as outlined below:

a) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust Fund will not have sufficient financial resources to meet

its obligations when they fall due or will have to do so at excessive costs. This risk can arise

from mismalches in the timing ofcash flows from revenue and capital/ operational outflows,

assets and liabilities according to their maturity profiles and can occur where cash flow streams

have been discontinued, etc. Funding risk arises when the necessary liquidity to fund illiquid

asset positions cannot be met at expected terms and when required.

The objective of the liquidity and funding management is to ensure that all foreseeable

operational and capital commitment expenditure can be met under both normal and stressed

conditions and the mismatch is controlled in line with allowable risk levels.

The Trust Fund has adopted an overall balance sheet approach which consolidates all sources

and uses ol Iiquidity, while aiming to maintain a balance between liquidity, cash flows and

interest rate considerations. The Trust F'und's liquidity and funding management process

inc ludes:

i)Projecting cash flows and considering the cash required and optimizing the short-term

requirements as well as the long-term funding, maintaining balance sheet liquidity ratios,
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ii) Maintain ing,/solic iting for a diverse range of funding sources with adequate back up

fac ilities,

The Trust Fund has an established corporate governance structure and process of managing

risks regarding guarantees and contingent liabilities.

The primary sources of revenue lor the 'I'rust Irund are mainly Crants from the central

Govemment.
-fhe table below summarizes the maturity analysis for flnancial liabilities to their remaining

contractual maturities.

Year Ended 30 June 2023

34 8t4,6J6

Year Ended 30 .lune 2022

Total

b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates, prices and interest rates.The objective

of market risk management policy is to protect and enhance the Statements of Financial

Position and performance by managing and controlling market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, and to optimize the funding of business operations and facilitate

capital expansion. The Trust Fund is exposed to the following market risks:

li) Currency Risk

The currency risk is minimal as most of cash and cash equivalents held with banks are

dominated in Kenya Shillings.

(ii) Price Risk

404,829,410
48,100,859

292,'t t 3,'?77

404,829,430

tqg !!trgltq!- lgpostJsHo
Due to Contractors
Contract Retention
Totel

t0,099,525House Purchase Deposits
Due to Contractors t72,547,235

304,206,7 42Contract Retention
t'72,547,235 3t4,306,267
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The Trust Fund is not exposed price risk.

(iii) lnterest Rate Risk

The Trust Fund's financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of changes in
interest rate levels. The interest rate risk is minimal as the Trust Fund does not have any
borrowings.

c) Credit Risk

The maximum exposure of the Trust Fund to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is as follows

Year Ended 30 June 2023

Contract Retention
Contract Advance

lgagaLoans
lrade Receivables
Cash at Bank
Total I,99 t,53 9s3

Year Ended 30 June 2022

Cash at Bank 5 18,262,835
Total 2,089,230,450

d) Operational Risk

Opcrational risk is the risk of dircct or indirect loss arising lrom a wide variety of causes

associatcd with the'frust Fund's processes, personnel, tcchnology and infrastructure and from

external laclors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as legal and regulatory

rcquirements and gcnerally acceptable standards of corporate behavior.

292,713,777292 7 t 3,777
2t0,121 6i0 210,721,630

565,460,459I565 460 459
r00,000,000 100,000,000

822,643,086822 643 086
r.991,5J8,95J 

J

Contract Retention 304,206,7 42 304,206,7 42
Contract AdYance 149, t69,3s4 14s,169,J94
Mortgage Loans 585,441,479 585,441 ,479
Trade Receivables 3 32,1 s0,000 112,t50,000

5 18,262,815
2,089,230,450
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The Trust Fund seeks to ensure that key operational risks are managed in a timely and effective

manner through a framework ofpolicies, procedures and tools to identifl, assess, monitor and

report such risks.

The Trust Fund's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of
financial losses and damage to the Trust Fund's reputation with overall cosl efrectiveness and

to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address

operational risk is assigned to senior management. The responsibility is supported by the

development ofoverall standards for the management ofoperational risk in the followrng areas:

(i) Requirements for appropriate segregation ofduties, including the independent authorization
of transactions.

(ii) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of financial transactions.

(iii) Compliance with regulatory and legal requirements.

(iv) Documentation of controls and procedures.

(v) Requirements for the yearly assessment of operational risks faced and the adequacy of
controls and procedures to address the risks identified.

(vi) Requirement for the reporting ofoperational losses and proposed remedial action.

(vii) Training and prot-essional development.

(viii) Ethical and business standards; and

(ix)Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Operational risks are managed by the lntemal Audit function established at the parent ministry

to spearhead and coordinate risk managemenl activities. The measures taken include

proactively identifuing, analyzing and mitigating risks in all facets ofthe business.

c) Compliance and Regulatory Risk

Compliance and regulatory risk include the risk of non-compliance with regulatory

requirements. The Trust Fund has complied with all externally imposed requirements

throughout the year.

f) Legal Risk

Legal risks are the risk of unexpected loss, including reputational loss, arising from defective

transaclions or contracts, claims being made or some other event resulting in a liability or the

loss for the Trust Fund, failure to protect the title to and inability to control the rights to assets

ofthe'Irust Fund (including intellectual property right), changes in law, orjurisdictional risk.

The Trust Fund manages legal risk through the legal function, legal risk policies and procedures

and the efflective use of intemal controls and external lawyers.

Low Cost Housing und
ncial Statemenls for lhe

I nfras lruc I ure Trus t I; und (KEN S U 1"' )
year ended 3Uh June 2023
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18. Explanation for budget variances

1'he original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly on 9th June
2022,Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. Significant budget
variances exhibited is due to underfunding during the year.

19. Related Parties Balances and Transactions

The Trust Fund regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually orjointly, or to exercise significant influence over the -[rust Fund, or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the Principal
Secretary and senior managers in the SIum Upgrading department.

(a) Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year.

Receipts and transfers

Kenya lnformal Settlement Improvement Project

Total Receipls and Transfers 1,1ss,000,000

(b) Outstanding balances arising from non-exchange transactions.

The following were outstanding balances with related parties as at 30th June 2023

ll2, r50,000

20. Fair value

'fhe trustees consider that there is no material difference between the fair value and carrying
value ofthe Trust Fund's financial assets and liabilities, where fair value details have not been
presented.

21. Events after the balance sheet date

There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting period

22. Capital Com mitments

All capital commitments contracted for/authorized at the reporting period end have been

recognized in the financial statements.

23. Ultimate holding entity

The Trust Fund is a Semi-Autonomous Govemment Agency under the Ministry oF Housing
and Urban Development. tts ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

State Department of llousing and Urban f)evelopment r, r55,000,000 | ,215,000,000

750,000,000

l,96s,000,000

100,000,000Civil Servants Housing Fund
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24.Cu rrency
'Ihe flnancial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Ksh)
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20. Anneres

Annex I: Progress on Follow Up of Prior Yerr Auditor's Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

Issue / Observations fr,om
Auditor

Reference
No. on
the
eD.l
rndil
REolt

Mrrrgenert
cor[anb

Strtrr:fifrcaftrd
/NdResa@

?'tmrDrac:

I
Unauthorized administrative
and other operating expenses

Resolved

., Unsupported subsidy from the
sale of houses

Subsidy tully
suDportd

Resolved

3 Unsupported cash and cash
equivalents

Resolved

4 Undisclosed imprest balance Resolved
5 Unsupported current

receivables from exchange
transactions

Supported
Resolved

6 Unsupported Noncurrent
receivables from exchange
transactio n s

Supported
Resolved

7 Unsupported work in progress supported Resolved

8 Innacuracies in the statement
ofcashflows

rectified
Resolved

9 Lack of updated Fixed Assets
Register

Process ongoing
Resolved
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Projects Implemented by the Trust Fund

srii0. PH6itCt gTA,RT

DATE
ENii DATE CONTRACT

PNRIOD
CONfIACT
SUIIflfITIMA
TE (K8Hg)

AMOtniT
CERTIFIND
(K8Hs)

eoUirTV

I Upgrading of 3.9km Road to
Bitumen Standards in

Gitogothi, Makaburini and
Mariko in Limuru, Kiambu
County.

3rd
September

2020

2ND

September
2021

52 Weeks t48,254,469.20 t22,981,629.55

1 Construction of Market Sheds
in Ngaru, Kirinyaga County

27"d July
2020

5'h May
z02t

42 Weeks 47 ,46t,725.00 37,912,733.70

3 Installation of 3No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Kiambu County

I I th July
2020

2nd
February

2021
24 Weeks l1,089,293.00 9,945,328.00

4 Installation of 6no. Electric
high mast floodlighting
structures in Thika town,
Kiambu County

2l st

February
2020

5th June
2020

I 5 Weeks 26,362,144.69 25,149,058.92

5 Installation of 3No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Muranga Counfy

28th July
2020

27th Janury
2021

20 Weeks t0,498,423.50 10,407,235.50

6 Proposed Construction of
Health Centre at Kisumu Ndogo
lnformal Senlement, Malindi,
Kilifi County

29th
September

2021

l3th January
202t

36 Weeks 48,805,790.00 r2.668.70s.66

7 lnstallation of 6No. Electric
Powered High Mast Flood
Lighting Structures in Ukunda
(Diani) Town.

lTrh
February

2020

lst June
2020

I 5 Weeks 26,362,t44.69 25,801,122.96

CENTRAL

COAST
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sa{o.

8

END DATE

lst June
2020

9 Proposed Market sheds in Ijara
Constituency, Garissa County

l Tth
December

2020

7th October
2021

42 Weeks

Installarion of 5no. Electric
Powered Highmast Flood
Lighting Structures in Ijara
Constituency, Garissa County

0
lst

September
2020

5th March
202t 24 Weeks 16,343,602.50

ll I Installarion of 5No. Highmast
; flood lighting strucrures in Kitui
lcoun ty

3rd
September

2020

I 8rh
February

202t
24 Weeks 18,599, r 50.00

Upgrading of 3.7KM KCB
Slaughter House Road to
Bitumen Standards in Mavoko
Slum, Mwingi Town- Kitui
County

2

3rd
September

2020

2nd
September

202t
24 Weeks t37,707,776.00 t25,462,459.42

l3 construction of 462 Housing
units under Sustainable
Neighbourhood Housing
Project (SNP) in Mavoko

52 Weeks
1,t02,264,208.7

5
97 4,487,396.30

t4 Construction and upgrading of
6.5 km sewer line in Athi River,
Mavoko in Machakos County

20rh
February

2020

4th June
2020 I 5 Weeks 99,011,793.00 96,533,333.56

PROJECT

Installation of 6No. Electric
Powered High Mast Flood
Lighting Structures, in Voi
Town

ST
DATE

lTrh
February

2020

CONTRACT
PERIOD

co CT
SUM/ESTIMA
TE, (KSHs)

AMOUNT
CERTIFIED
(KsHs)

COUNTY

EASTERN

LOWER
EASTERN

I 5 Weeks 26,93 5,339.s0 26,059,249.07

49,751,6t0.00 38,6 t2.203.00
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rrrrN,rr _coNTnAC"r AMOUNT
CERTIFIDD
(KsH8)

s^r6:- TftOJEET if**$--
DATE

*6Ei$#i*,-
8U}I/EETIMA
Tf (K8H8)

17,794,315.00 t7 ,794,315.00

l5 Construction of Social Hall in
Majengo Slums, Meru Town

l8th
December

20t9

8th April
2020

l6 Weeks

t6 Installation of l5no. Electric
Powered Highmast Flood
Lighting Structures in Meru

23rd July
2020

7th January
202t

24 Weeks 5l,791,830.80 5t,791,t93.73

t7 Upgrading of 1.5 KM road to
murram standards in Mjini
Slums, Meru Town, Meru
County.

l Sth
December

2019

8th April
2020

16 Weeks 9,909,3s0.00 7,t68,072.40

t8 Proposed Upgrading of 3. I km
Road to Bitumen Standards in
Mworoga and Makutano
lnfomal Settlements in Meru

22nd July
2020

5th May
2021

44 Weeks t26,230,424.00 126,230,424.00

7,529,648.68
t9 Construction of 4KM Sewerline

at Nyagachok, Kericho County
I lrH August

2020
I OrH January

2021
24 Weeks 23,933,062.00

52 Weeks I 19,295,857.00 104,397,662.69

20 Proposed Upgrading of 3.5KM
road to bitumen standards in
Londiani, Kericho County

l Tth July
2020

l6th July
202t

2l Installation of 6No. Electric
Powered High Mast Flood
Lighting Structures in Kajiado
County

t Tlh
February

2020

lst June
2020

| 5 Weeks 26,362,t44.69

20,730,108.00

SOUTH RIFT

26,067,882.96

22 Installation of 6No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Nakuru

l3th July
2020

27th October
7020

24 Weeks

Pf,RIOD
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ROJECT

Proposed civil works for roads
and other extemal works in
social housing- met site (Lot l)
in Nairobi Coun

RT END DATE C I{TRA
SUIWESTIMA
TE (KSHS)

DATE

l4th April
2.021

CONTRACT
PERIOD

AMOUNT
CERTIFTED
(KSHS)

COUNTY

NAIROBI

430,970,890. l7

28

3 lst
December

2022

salo.

23

24 Civil & other Associated Works
for Social Housing Project at
Meteorological Site (Lot 2) in
Nairobi County

l4th April
2021

3lst
December

2022
729,120,820.81 212.794,685.25

25 Proposed Outbuilding and
Associated Electromechanical
Services Works for Social
Housing Project at
Meteorological Site (Lot 3) in
Nairobi County

l4th April
2021

23rd March
2022 6l t,978, r35.00 43.833.762.50

26 Upgrading of Dagoretti Market
Access Road to Bitumen
Standards in Nairobi City
County

3rd
September

2020

2nd
September

202t
52 Weeks 245,7 t9,419.00 77. l 88,841 .5 7

77 Fencing to Kibera Soweto East
Zone 'B' Site in Nairobi 3,933,688.00 1.438,585.89

Installation of 3No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Nairobi

12,691,5 r r.58 12,520,689.60

29 Instal lation of 6no. Electric
high mast floodlighting

ctures in Mwiki, Nairobistru

l2th
February

2020

27th May
2020 I 5 Weeks 26,362,t44.69 25,578,45 8. l6
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s/N

Installation of 6No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Nairobi

TTATT-
DATT

ET{DDAfi--t6isff,*€*
PERIOI)

corsrAe[-
SUM/fSTIMA
TD (K8HE)

,rMorflv eOtiriTY

30
20,749,520.00

3l Footbridge connecting
Gikomba Market and Landhies
Road, Nairobi

22nd July
2020

2l st

December
)020

24 Weeks 8,286,786.00 8,285,752.40

32 Footbridge at New Pumwani
Road Bridge connecting
Machakos Country Bus Stage
and Cikomba" Nairobi

8,286,786.00 8,285,'t64.00

33 Upgnding of I .4 km road to
cabro standards at Zimmerman
settlemenl in Nairobi

l6rh
December

2019

2l st

September
2020

40 Weeks 78,713,888.00 78,713,888.00

34 Facilitation for the relocation of
Kibera Soweto East, Zone 'B'
PAPs in Nairobi

I st October
2019

30th July
2020

40 Weeks 280,000,000.00 200,541,000.00

35 Excavation of Meteorological
Site for 13700No. Social

I Housing Units in Nairobi
86,194,178.03 86, 194, l 78.03

36 Installation of 6No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Lodwar, Turkana

I 5th October
2020

I 8th March
202t

24 Weeks 21,227,500.00 20,227,500.00
NORTH RIFT

Construction of Market and

supporting infrastructure at

Dede Market, Migori County

I 8th March
2021

17,953,728.32 12,909,033.64

NYANZA

CfRTIIIED
(KIHi)

7,929,740.00
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38 Uhuru Business Park Kisumu
Town, Kisumu County - Phase
I(Presidential Directive),
Kisumu County

CONTRACT
SUM/ESTIMA
TE (KSHS)

349,448,585.09

l9 Uhuru Business Park Kisumu
Town, Kisumu County - Civil
and other Extemal Works for
Phase I (Presidential Directive),
Kisumu County

l4th
September

2020

24th
December

202t
248,13t,327.8s 247,979,662.79

40 Construction of Mlimani
Primary School in Nakuru
County

23u July
2020

22th Jttly
202t 52 Weeks rr6,952,4r8.00

4t Construction of a Modem
Multipurpose Market, Nakuru

gth

November
2020Coun

7!h

November
2022

104 Weeks 5l r,l r8,328.00

SOUTH RIFT
10,458,61r.00

377,487,956.00

42 Construction of4No.
Classrooms, Ablution Block&
Associated sewer system,
Administration Block, Kitchen
& lNo. Dormitory at
Chiakariga Girls Secondary
School in Tharaka Nithi Counry

l3'h August
2020

l2th August
202t 52 Weeks 79,s44.920.00

43 Construction of 5 No.
Classrooms, Administration &
Ablution Blocks in Kiwanjani
Primary School, Isiolo Town,
Isiolo County.

l5th
February

2020

l6rh
September

2020
30 Weeks 19,809,805.00 19,189,801.00

P CT ART DA
DATE

CONTRACT
PERIOD

24 Weeks

EN E

4th
December

2019

3l st May
2020

AMOUNT
CERTIFTED
(KSHS)

COUNTY

UPPER
EASTERN

339,083,806.3 I

36,690,547.98
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- ^tt6irllB/T.[O. PRG'TCt SfART
DATE

NiTDDATT I TTTRACf
PERIOD

csfrnx€"-
SI,]IW[STIMA
TE (K8rI8)

44 lnstallation of 6no. Electric
high mast floodlighting
structures in Tharaka Nithi

I lth
February

2020

26th May
2020 I 5 Weeks 22,382,698.80 17,956,603.80

45 Proposed Upgrading of 3.5KM,
Chepareria Town to Propoi
Secondary School Road to
Bitumen Standards, West Pokot

lOth July
z0z0

lOth July
2021

52 Weeks 192,353, I 56.00 t24,653,882.37

46 Construction of Market Sheds
at Sang'alo Market

I lth
December

2020

lOth May,
202t

24 Weeks 52,285,296.00 43,03 5,940.80

47 Construction of Market Sheds
at Bondeni area. Kitale, Trans
Nzoia County

22nd
February

2021

3l st

December
2021

44 Weeks 55,677 ,445 .00 2s,97t,817.44

48 Installation of 6no. Electric
powered high mast flood
lighting structures in, Bungoma
town

26th
February

2020

27rh May
2020

l2 Weeks 26,93s,3s9.50 26.905,339.50

49 Proposed 9 No High masts in
various seftlements in Bungoma
County

2lst July
2020

l2th January
2021

30 Weeks 3 r.644,783.18 27,134,04s.98

50 Installation of 6no. Electric
high mast floodlighting
structures in Kakamega County

8th January
2070

22nd April
2020

I 5 Weeks 30,210,83 r .20 30.2t0,667.77

5l Construclion of Market stalls in
Buchifi, Mumias, Kakamega
County

24th July
2020

27th
December

2020
24 Weeks 54,687, 190.00 5 3,783,380.00

CERTIFIED
(KCH8)

WESTERN

39



Kenya Slum Upgrading, low Cost Hoasing and Wastructwe Tr:nst Fund (KENSUF)

I

Annual R and Financial Statements for tle yeat ended 3Ah Jaru 2023

.[l€!ICltr'-.- fr{m&is MDtrTTt eOI.frLlEJI
rtrro!)

ootr+tl cr
fi,MrifiiuuA
Tr (ti3Er)

Aitoti[r
ctrImru,
(roE3)

couinr

52 Construction of Market stalls in
Musandq Mumias, Kakamega
County

l6th January
2020

l3th August
2020 30 Weeks 37,823,090.00 36,010,316.00

53 Installation of 3No. Highmast
flood lighting structures in
Kakamcga County

5th
November

2020

5th May
2021

24 Weeks 10,356,749.70 9,946,223.73

54 Insallation of 9No. Highmast
flood lighting structurcs in
Bungoma County

31,644,783.18 19,592,255.46
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Annex II: Fund Transfers and Receipt

Amounts Disbursed by State Department of Housing and Urban
Development (Kshs) as at 30(h June 2023

Amount
Received by

IKENSUFI
(Kshs) as at

30th June 2023
(E)

Differences
(Kshs)
(F):(D-E)

Reference
Numher

Date
Disbursed

Recurrent
(A)

0

Development (B)

045 000 000.00 45 000 000.00

Inter-
Ministerial

Total
(D)=(A+B+C)

45,000,000.00l6-June-2023
0 2s.000.000.00 0 2s,000,000.00 25,000,000.0027 -Jne-2023

3.July -2023 0 407,500,000.00 0 407,500,000.00 407,500,000.00
677,500,000.004-July-2023 0 677,500,000.00 0 677,500,000.00

l,155,000,000.00 l,rs5,000,000.00Total l,rs5,000,000.00

I confirm lhat the amounts shown above are correct as ofthe date indicated

of Accountants department of beneliciary Fu

CJ s I t.!:.1... /:-.:>i.(r..:, r......... sieo 3L ll'7r2.3Date

nd:Head

Name

4l
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